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B-3454 - B-3462 c. 1835-1875 
1105-1137 S. Charles St. (East side) 
Baltimore, Md. 
Private access 

The east side of the 1100 block of S. Charles St. is improved by 
several different types of houses, all of which currently serve a combined 
residential/commercial function. The earliest surviving houses on the block, 
those at 1131-1137 S. Charles St., are a group of late Federal style, two and 
a half story, two bay wide brick houses, built in the late 1830's by two 
different builders. To the north of this early group, at 1129 S. Charles St., 
is a two story plus attic, two bay wide brick house, built in the early 1850's. 
The remainder of the block is improved by three story, two bay wide brick houses 
with shed roofs and bracketed cornices, some of which (1115-1117 and 1123 S. Charles 
St.) were originally built in the 1850's with gable roofs and later remodeled, 
and some of which (1105, 1125, 1127 S. Charles St.) were built in the 1870's 
in their present form. 
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This three story, three bay brick house with shed roof represents an 
enlargement of the original gable roofed house built on this site in the 
1850's. The first floor area has been converted into a restaurant. 

The house is three stories in height, 16' wide, and occupies a lot 50' deep. 
The main house is two rooms deep and there is a three story high, three bay deep 
rear addition. The house is constructed in running bond. The shed roof is 
capped by a wooden cornice consisting of a deeply projecting crown molding set 
above two distinct rows of panels with scroll-sawed motifs, bordered by a row 
of cut-work scallops. Four carved brackets support the cornice and connect it 
to a lower molding strip decorated with a row of quarter-round carvings. The 
brick freize area thus formed was punctuated by three scroll-sawed ventilating 
panels which are now missing.. The house has a double hooded chimney located 
along the south side of the front section of the roof. 

The second and third story window openings have segmentally arched brick ^ ^ 
lintels with solid wood tympanums. The sills are rustic stone. All of the 
window openings are filled with 1/1 double hung sash. The first floor area has 
been converted into a modern restaurant. A modern door is set diagonally in 
the north-west corner of the building, flanked by two two-sided projecting 
plate glass bays set on wood siding bases. An aluminum siding sign area extends 
around both sides of the store-front at the cornice level. The entrance is 
reached directly from the street. 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

This house is representative of a fairly large number of houses in Federal Hill 
that were originally built in the 1840's and 1850's as gable-roofed houses, but which 
were remodeled after the Civil War in the currently fashionable Victorian style, with 
the gable roof being rebuilt as a shed roof and a modern bracketed cornice added. 
The first floor area of the house always served as a store-front, with the family 
living on the floors above. 

The house was built by Joseph Kaufman, who also built similar houses to the south 
and east of this house, all of which are now gone. Kaufman kept the house as rental 
property and in the 1885 division of his estate it is referred to as a "three story 
brick dwelling and store at the corner of Cross and Weyler Sts.1 Kaufman was a butcher 
whose business was located across the street at 1124 S. Charles St. 

Baltimore City Land Records, Liber JB 1339, Folio 17; ED 11, Folio 228 
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The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created 
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the 
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 
19 74 Supplement. 

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information 
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1105 S. Charles Street 
Block 0950 Lot 052 
Baltimore City 
Baltimore East Quad. 
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